
Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 3, 2009

Page 1

The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey
was held on August 3, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the Township Hall, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas,
New Jersey.

The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act and that
adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law.

The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk:

Councilmember Thomas Conrad
Councilmember Glenn Douglass

Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare
Mayor Michael Beck

Also present: Anthony Monzo, Solicitor and Kathleen McPherson, Manager
Absent: Councilmember Mazurek

Swearing in Ceremony of Detective Lieutenant Thomas Keywood

Mayor Beck swore in Thomas Keywood to his new position as Lieutenant while his wife and daughter held the bible.

WORK SESSION

Health Care Facility for Veterans
Mayor Beck said there would be a quick presentation by Spyro Spyropoulos and Steve Sheftz.  He thanked Steve
for putting the meeting together with Jerry Keeland and said it was an excellent meeting.
Mr. Sheftz said he was in full support of Resolution #2009-225.  He said 2 years ago they recognized Colonel
Linnington.  He said many more people were aware of the problem that veterans had here and should be heard in
every municipality.   He said Spyros had helped many County Veterans. 
Spyros said he would like to propose Resolution #2009-225 to have a health care system at Kessler and also to get
ID cards to allow emergency services at local hospitals.  He said it was  most important to pass the resolution and
move on the request.  He was working for his veterans and there were many more that needed help.
Mayor Beck thanked those who drove the vans for the veterans.

Abandoned Vessels
Solicitor Monzo said the draft ordinance was prompted by the State Legislature to help clean local waterways by
authorizing municipalities to adopt an ordinance to prohibit owners from abandoning vessels in the waterways.  He
said it would require registration of those who dock and moor the vessels in the open.  He said it should be changed
to exclude private marinas and also have a provision that would allow municipalities to remove vessels if not
registered and left in the waterway.  He said there was no provision for cost.
Councilmember Conrad and Councilmember Douglass were in agreement with that.
Deputy Mayor Lare asked about enforcement.
Solicitor Monzo said if the vessel was partially submerged they would contact the State Police to get the registration



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 3, 2009

Page 2

number and notify the owner.
Deputy Mayor Lare asked how would a person know to register?
Solicitor Monzo said signs would be posted.
Mayor Beck said the focus was on abandoned vessels.
Deputy Mayor Lare said if people came into the harbor and took a dingy back and forth he  wondered how that
would work.
Solicitor Monzo said if it wasn’t registered and they were there for seven days it would be considered abandoned. 
He said it was a State law as well.
Deputy Mayor Lare asked if the State would enforce it?
Solicitor Monzo said the State could site them as well as the Municipality.
Mayor Beck said if Cape May passed an ordinance and the Township didn’t  it would leave Lower Township open to
dumping off boats.
Solicitor Monzo said marina owners were in favor of the ordinance and supported legislation.
Councilmember Douglass asked how would it affect Cape May Beach where sailboats were stored?
Solicitor Monzo said that was private property and was exempt.
Mayor Beck said there were many along the bay who left boats tied up.
Solicitor Monzo said there was no cost to register and no time limit if registered.
Council all agreed to have 1st reading on August 17th.

Review of Consent and Regular Agenda Items
No comments from Council.

Public Questions on Consent Agenda and/or Regular Agenda Items
No comments from the public.

Consent Agenda

Approval of Minutes July 20, 2009
Membership Approval NJ State Fireman’s Association for Rachael M. Hilvert, Villas Fire Company
Res. #2009-212, Payment of Vouchers, $3,921,181.12
Res. #2009-213, A Resolution Requesting Reduction of Performance Guarantee for The Grand, Diamond

Beach, LP; Block 700.01; Lots 3-9; Escrow #Z03-12-06
Res. #2009-214, Authorization for Refund of Taxes (2 properties - owner’s rec’d. disabled vet status)
Res. #2009-215, Authorization for Extension of Interest Date for 2009 Third Quarter Taxes (Dates

extended to Aug. 17)
Res. #2009-216 Capital Budget Amendment (Required to comply with adopted budget and bond

ordinances proposed)
Res. #2009-217, Authorization for Terminal Leave Pay Out (Retirement Lt. Winter - $75,651.28)
Res. #2009-218, A Resolution To Authorize the Submission and Acceptance of a DCA Grant for

Americans with Disabilities Act Improvements and Related Activities for the Naval Air
Station 

Res. #2009-219, Adoption of Citizen Participation Plan (part of grant application for Navel Air Station grant
application)

Res. #2009-220, Designation of Colleen Crippen as Fair Share Housing Officer (Part of grant application
for Navel Air Station)



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 3, 2009

Page 3

Res. #2009-221, Resolution Approving Project Proposal Between Hatch Mott Macdonald and the
Township of Lower for Engineering Services Related to  Design, Bid Award, Construction,
Administration and Observation Services for the Delaware Bay Shore Outfall Extensions
($51,200)

Res. #2009-222, Establishing a Green Team Advisory Committee
Res. #2009-223, Application for 2010 Drug Enforcement and Demand Reduction (DEDR) Grant Funds
Res. #2009-224, Authorization for the Payout of Accumulated Compensatory Time (T Keywood

$22,996.80)
Res. #2009-225, Resolution Requesting the US Department of Veteran’s Affairs Establish a “Health Care

Center Facility” Program for Veterans un South Jersey at the Former William Kessler
Memorial Hospital

Ord.  #2009-11, Bond Ordinance Providing for the Installation of Stormwater Outfall Extensions for
Various Roads in and by the Township of Lower, in the County of Cape May, New Jersey,
Appropriating the $300,000 Therefor and Authorizing the Issuance of $245,000  Bonds or
Notes of the Township to Finance Part of the Cost Thereof, 1st rdg. (Road Program:
Drainage Outfall Lines) 2nd rdg. August 17, 2009

Ord. #2009-12, Bond Ordinance Providing for Various Capital Improvements of the Township of Lower, in
the County of Cape May, New Jersey, Appropriating the Aggregate Amount of
$436,000.00Therefor and Authorizing the Issuance of $335,000  Bonds or Notes of the
Township to Finance Part of the Cost Thereof, 1st rdg. (Miscellaneous equipment &
repairs) 2nd rdg. August 17, 2009

Ord. #2009-13, An Ordinance Replacing Chapter 400, Section 41 of the Code of the Township of Lower
to Update and Clarify the Repealed Standards and Procedures For Approving the
Construction of a Wind Energy Conversion System (also know as a windmill) in the
Township of Lower, 1st rdg.  - 2nd reading & pubic hearing August 17, 2009 

Councilmember Douglass  motioned to adopt the consent agenda,  seconded by Councilmember Conrad.  The
consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad, “yes”, Councilmember
Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor  Lare, “yes”, Mayor Beck , “yes”.

Regular Agenda

Ord. #2009-10, An Ordinance Repealing Chapter 279, Registered Sex Offender Prohibition Zones, of the
Code of the Township of Lower, was presented for second reading and final adoption.  The Clerk announced the
ordinance was published according to law and copies were available in the Clerk’s Office.
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for comment on the ordinance.
Councilmember Douglass motioned to adopt the ordinance,  seconded by Councilmember           The consent
agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”,
Deputy Mayor  Lare, “yes”, Mayor Beck , “yes”.

Administrative Reports
Personnel Action Report
June Report - Municipal Judge



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 3, 2009

Page 4

Council Comments
Councilmember Conrad said it was a good meeting regarding the water hookups and there were no interest loans
available.  He said the loan could also be used for filters or a new well if city water wasn’t available.  He said
information was available at Township Hall.
Councilmember Douglass had no comments.
Deputy Mayor Lare asked Council to suspend permit fees for applications for solar panels and windmills.
Mayor Beck said the Taxpayers Association helped to stuff tax bills.
Manager McPherson also thanked the group.
Mayor Beck said the Coombs - Douglass race was a great experience.  He thanked the Recreation Department and
all the volunteers.  He said he even won a trophy.  He said movie night at Mulligan Field would start August 12th .
He said it was a great family night.  He thanked Eileen Kreis for her efforts putting it together.
Mayor Beck said August 25th there would be a meeting with Senator Van Drew regarding Stockton and Ponder
Lodge at 7:00 p.m. at Township Hall also National Night Out would be tomorrow.

7:30 Public Comments

Health Care Facility
Spyros Spyropoulos thanked Mayor Beck and Council for the resolution.  He mentioned the State of New Jersey 
only had 2 Veteran Hospitals and it was of the utmost importance they got this facility.

New York Avenue
Maureen Garcia of 105 E. New York Avenue, said she wanted to speak to clear her name.
Mayor Beck said he had spoken to her and some things needed to be kept in the back room.
Ms. Garcia said she wanted to clear her name and her children’s names.  She said she paid her rent.  She said
there was an article in the paper that said her husband was a gang member, again she wanted to clear her name
and wanted it to end.  She said it wasn’t her and if there was a problem at the house call the police.  She stated her
son’s father worked for the City of Wildwood. 
Ms. Garcia said it needed to be taken care of and wanted to be left alone.

Closed Session - DRBA
Joe Winters of Florida Avenue asked about the closed session and who owned the airport?
Solicitor Monzo said the County owned it and gave a long term lease  to the DRBA.
Mr. Winters asked if the Township ever owned it?
Solicitor Monzo said “no”.  He said commercial buildings are paying taxes when they were rented.
Mr. Winters questioned when they were not rented they didn’t pay taxes?
Mayor Beck said they didn’t pay taxes.
Mr. Winters asked why not?
Mayor said it was part of the economic development if the buildings were leased they paid taxes when vacant they
didn’t pay.
Manager McPherson said the County was doing RFP’s to lease the buildings so there was some effort towards
economic development, but if empty no taxes.
Manager McPherson said the tenant paid the taxes as part of the lease.
Solicitor Monzo explained the lien process on the property and how it could go to tax sale so the Township
eventually received the tax money due.  He said except if it was vacant property the DRBA  could use it to foster
economic development.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 3, 2009

Page 5

Solicitor Monzo said the next meeting he should have something to lay out as to how it would work with the DRBA
and County.  He said there were some properties that could go to tax sale if not paid by September.
Steve Sheftz said the airport property was given to the County in 1945 by the Department of War with the
understanding that the airport could not be sub-divided and sold.  He said also anything on the property would be
part of County property.  He said each tenant paid their own sewer and water.

New York Avenue
Sarah said she was a very good friend of Maureen and was upset about the situation. She was upset how people
were being judgmental and they had to find a way to get along.  She said Maureen was a good person and her 14
year old son just graduated with honors.  She said it wasn’t fair to the kids and needed to move forward.
Chalanda asked if when neighbors had issues did the Township have any mediation?
Mayor Beck said they had done it a few times it would be the Manager, Police and Code Enforcement or whoever
was involved.  He did say he couldn’t make neighbors get along.  He wanted to make sure the laws were enforced. 
He said good people couldn’t help who they knew.  He said everyone had someone that had been a problem.
Mayor Beck said he had seen the police there several times.
Barbara Scott of West New Jersey Avenue said she had a problem on her street and brought it to the Mayor and it
was resolved.  She told the ladies to keep the faith.  She said there was a house on her street that had been burned
and left like that for 4 years.  
Mayor Beck said it was on the list of homes that the Township was working on to be removed.
Solicitor Monzo said it was a process that had to be followed as part of the State law and everyone needed to be
noticed.  
Manager McPherson said she would let her know when the hearing would be.
Mayor Beck said at the last meeting they put liens on properties for grass  that had to be cut.

Flea Market
Bob Rizzo asked about the airport flea market proposal.
Mayor Beck said they never heard any more about it.

Abandoned Vessels
Janet Pitts asked who would monitor the vessels that came in.
Solicitor Monzo said registration would be through the Police.
Ms. Pitts asked if the Township could take title to the abandoned vessels?
Solicitor Monzo said yes, through a process.
Ms. Pitts said she saw a problem with whose side the vessel should be registered on?  She said people didn’t have
cars so how were they supposed to get to the airport to register?
Deputy Mayor Lare said the ordinance would allow the Township to take control and remove vessels that were
abandoned in the harbor.  He said it wasn’t so much to go out and register all vessels here for a short term.

Fishing Industry
Janet Pitts wanted to congratulate the fishing industry and ports it was now the 4th in the nation and that was
monumental.  She felt it should be recognized since it was a big part of Lower Township.

Solar Energy
Bob Kaiser of 502 Beechwood Avenue said he had solar power for 5 year now.  He applauded the Township for
thinking towards alternate energy.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 3, 2009

Page 6

Douglass Park
Ed Butler said he had a couple calls about Douglass Park asking for a sign for foot traffic.
Claudia Kammer, Twp. Clerk said part was asphalted to keep bikes off the are a where people walked.
Manager McPherson said sign could be put up as no bikes or skateboards.  

Resolution #2009-226,  A Resolution Providing for a Meeting Not Open to the Pubic in Accordance with the
 Provisions of the New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12
Councilmember Mazurek  motioned to adopt the ordinance, seconded by Councilmember Conrad.  The resolution
was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy
Mayor Lare, “yes”, Mayor Beck  “yes”.
 

Council returned to open session and there being no further comment, Deputy Mayor Lare  motioned to adjourn the
 meeting, seconded by Councilmember Conrad  the meeting unanimously adjourned by verbal “ayes” at 8:05 p.m.

__________________________ __________________________
           Mayor Township Clerk

Approved: August 17, 2009


